Filing Instructions

Prepared for: Prepared by:

TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP SINGERLEWAK LLP

613 COMMERCIAL STREET 1255 LEE ST. SE, SUITE 210
GARIBALDI, OR 97118 SALEM, OR 97302

2022 OREGON FORM CT-12
YOU HAVE A BALANCE DUE OF ..¢cccceeecccccccns $ 459.00

ENCLOSE A CHECK OR MONEY ORDER FOR $459.00, PAYABLE TO OREGON DEPARTMENT
OF JUSTICE.

THE REPORT SHOULD BE SIGNED AND DATED BY THE AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL(S).

MAIL TO - CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES SECTION
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
100 SW MARKET STREET
PORTLAND, OREGON 97201-5702

THE RETURN SHOULD BE RECEIVED BY AUGUST 15, 2024

200061
04-01-22



Charitable Activities Section
Form CT'1 2 Oregon Department of Justice You can now file reports and
For Oregon Charities 100 SW Market Street VOIGE (971) 6731880 | Pa by credit card using our
For Accounting Periods Beginning in: | Portland, OR 97201-5702 TTY (800) 735-2900 o.nlln.e form at
Email: charitable@doj.state.or.us FAX (971) 673-1882 https://justice.oregon.gov/
2 02 2 Website: https://www.doj.state.or.us paymentportal/Account/Login
Line-by-line instructions for completing the annual
report form can be found on our website.

Section I. General Information

1. 31032
TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

613 COMMERCIAL STREET

GARIBALDI, OR 97118
503-322-2222

CLAUDINE@GTBNEP.ORG

Cross Through Incorrect ltems and Correct Here:
(See instructions for change of name or accounting period.)

Registration #:
Organization Name:
Address:

City, State, Zip:

Phone: Fax: Amended
Email: Report?
Period Beginning: 10/01/22  Period Ending: 09/30/23 ]

the |frpe of solicitations;

If yes, also write the name of the fundraising firm(s) here:

2. Did a certified public accountant audit your financial records? - If yes, attach a copy of the auditor’s report, financial
statements, accompanying notes, schedules, or other documents supplementing the report or financial statements. Yes |:| No

3. Is the organization a party to a contract with a fundraising firm that relates to solicitations in Oregon? If yes, check

in-person; I:I direct mail; I:I advertising; I:Ivending machine; I:I telephone; or I:I other solicitations. L1 vYes No

(If you

checked "other solicitations", attach an explanation.)

agreement or action. See instructions.

your registration.)

5. During this reporting period, did the organization amend its articles of incorporation, bylaws, or trust documents,
OR did the organization receive a determination or revocation letter from the Internal Revenue Service relating to
its tax-exempt status? If yes, attach a copy of the amended document or letter.

4. Has the organization or any of its officers, directors, trustees, or key employees ever signed a voluntary agreement
with any government agency or been a party to legal action in any court or administrative agency regarding
charitable solicitation, administration, management, or fiduciary practices? If yes, attach explanation of each such

]

Yes No

]

Yes No

6. Is the organization ceasing operations and is this the final report? (If yes, see instructions on how to close

L] Yes No

7. Provide contact information for the person responsible for retaining the organization’s records.

Name Position

Phone Mailing Address & Email Address

CLAUDINE REHN DEPUTY DIRECTOR

503-322-2222 PO BOX 493 ,GARIBALDI,OR 97118

8. List of Officers, Directors, Trustees and Key Employees - List each person who held one of these positions at any time during the year even
if they did not receive compensation. Attach additional sheets if necessary. If an attached IRS form includes substantially the
same compensation information, the phrase "See IRS Form" may be entered in lieu of completing this section. (Oregon law requires
a minimum of three directors for nonprofit public benefit corporations.)

and email address

(A) Name, mailing address, daytime phone number (B) Title & ©)

average weekly Compensation
hours devoted to (enter $0 if
position position unpaid)

Name: SEE STATEMENT 1
Address:
Phone:

Name:
Address:
Phone:

Name:
Address:
Phone:

Form Continued on Page 2

297701 01-05-23




9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Section Il. Fee Calculation

Total Revenue

Attach explanation if Total Revenue is $0.)
Revenue Fee

amount on line 9.
Amount on Line 9 Revenue Fee

$0 - $24,999 $20
$25,000 $49.999 $50
$50,000 $99.999 $90
$100,000 $249.999 $150
$250,000 $499.999 $200
$500,000 . $999,999 $300
$1,000,000 o more $400

Net Assets or Fund Balances at End of the Reporting Period
(From Part |, Line 22 (end of year) on Form 990; Line 21 on Form
990-EZ; or Part III, Line 6 on Form 990-PF. For 990-N filers or others,
see the CT-12 instructions to calculate. Attach explanation if amount
is $0 or a negative number)

Net Fixed Assets Used to Conduct Charitable Activities
(Generally, from Part X, Line 10c on Form 990; Line 23B and possibly
24B on Form 990-EZ; or Part Il, Line 14b on Form 990-PF. For 990-N
filers or others, see the CT-12 instructions to calculate. See the CT-12

instructions if organization owns income-producing assets.

(From Part |, Line 12 (current year) on Form 990; Line 9 on Form 990-EZ; Part I, Line 12a on
Form 990-PF. For 990-N filers or others, see the CT-12 instructions for how to calculate total revenue.

(See chart below. Minimum fee is $20, even if total revenue is $0 or a negative amount.) The revenue fee is determined by the

9. 2,423,716.

10. 400.

609,224.

12.

19,929.

13. 589, 295.

14.

15.

Amount Subject to Net Assets or Fund Balances Fee

(Line 11 minus Line 12. If Line 11 minus Line 12 is less than $50,000, write $0.)

Net Assets or Fund Balances Fee

(Line 13 multiplied by .0001. If the fee is less than $5, enter

Are you filing this report late? |:| Yes No

$0. Not to exceed $2,000. Round cents to the nearest whole dollar.)

14.

59.

15.

16. Total Amount Due

(Add Lines 10, 14, and 15. Make check payable to the Oregon Department of Justice.)

(If yes, the late fee is a minimum of $20. You may owe more depending on how late the report is. See Instruction 15
for additional information or contact the Charitable Activities Section at (971) 673-1880 to obtain late fee amount.)

16. 459,

17. Attach a copy of the organization’s federal 990 or other return and all supporting schedules and attachments that were filed with the IRS,
except that Form 990 & 990EZ filers do not need to attach a copy of their Schedule B. Also, if the organization did not file with the IRS or
filed a 990-N, but had Total Revenue of $50,000 or more, or Net Assets or Fund Balances of $100,000 or more, see the instructions.
Such organizations may be required to complete certain IRS forms for Oregon purposes only. If the attached return was not filed with the
IRS, then mark any such return as "For Oregon Purposes Only." If your organization files IRS Form 990-N (e-Postcard) please attach
a copy if available.

BRADLEY BINGENHEIMER

Preparer’'s name (printed)

Please Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer/director of the organization. | have examined this return, including all
Sign accompanying forms, schedules, and attachments, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and complete.
Here » DEPUTY DIRE
Signature of officer Date Title
Claudine Rehn P.O. BOX 493, GARIBALDI, OR 97118
Officer's name (printed) Address
(503) 322-2222
Phone
Paid ///,//;f/
Preparer’s 08/03/24 503.585.7751
Use Only
Pr’eﬁarer s S/gr/yfse/ Date Phone
}/ o

1255 LEE ST. SE, SUITE 210,
Address

SALEM,

Line-by-line instructions for completing the annual report form can be found at https://www.doj.state.or.us/charitableactivities/
annual-reporting-for-charities/file-your-annual-report. If you click the appropriate link for this year’s form, the

instructions are included in that document.
1880 or send an email to charitable@doj.state.or.us.

297702 01-23-23

If you would like us to send a copy of the instructions, please call us at 971-673-




TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

02-0584357

OREGON

OFFICERS INFORMATION

STATEMENT 1

NAME DAVID JOHNSON
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME CLIFFORD RONE
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME LIANE WELCH

ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME NANCY HOFFMAN
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME KRISTI FOSTER
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME MEREDITH RICHARDSON
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME JOHN KIRBY
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME SHARON HARMON
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME MARK WUSTENBERG
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

10

0.

1.
0.

1.

40.
110,484.

0.

1.
0.

1.
0.

10

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

TITLE

PHONE

DIRECTOR

SECRETARY/TREASURER

IMMEDIATE PAST
PRESIDENT

VICE PRESIDENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

PRESIDENT

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

STATEMENT(S) 1



TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

NAME JAMES SKAAR
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

NAME MICHAEL SINNOTT
ADDRESS

EMAIL

AVERAGE WEEKLY HOURS
COMPENSATION

1.
0.

1.
0.

02-0584357
TITLE DIRECTOR

PHONE

TITLE DIRECTOR

PHONE

STATEMENT(S) 1



EXTENDED TQO AUGUST 15,
Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

~m 990

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

2024

OMB No. 1545-0047

2022

Open to Public
Inspection

A For the 2022 calendar year, or tax year beginning OCT 1, 2022 andending SEP 30, 2023
B cCheckif C Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicable:
change. | TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP
Shange Doing business as 02-0584357
ratien Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Roomy/site | E Telephone number
Final | 613 COMMERCIAL STREET 503-322-2222
ﬁrergm- City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Gross receipts $ 2 ’ 439 ’ 582.
Amended] GARIBALDI, OR 97118 H(a) Is this a group return
[_]&88"* | F Name and address of principal office: KRISTI FOSTER for subordinates? [_lvYes No
pending P. O . BOX 4 9 3 , GARIBALDI ’ OR 9 7 1 1 8 H(b) Are all subordinates included? |:| Yes |:| No
| Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) |:| 501(c) ( ) (insert no.) |:| 4947(a)(1) or |:| 527 If "No," attach a list. See instructions
J Website: WWW.TBNEP.ORG H(c) Group exemption number
K _Form of organization: Corporation [ ] Trust [ ] Association [ ] Other | L Year of formation: 200 2| m State of legal domicile: OR

[Partl| Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activites: THE TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES

PARTNERSHIP AS A NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION DEDICATED TO THE

g 2 Check this box |:| if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
% 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . 3 9
3 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) . ... 4 9
9 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2022 (Part V, line 2a) . 5 14
€| 6 Total number of volunteers (eSHMALE if NECESSAIY) ................coccrevrorcoreeriorecserenoco 6 132
G| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part |, line 11 ... ... 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 1,436,410. 2,439,582.
2| o Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 0. 0.
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) 0. 0.
©1 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) -7,320. -15,866.
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIll, column (A), line 12) ... 1 ’ 429 ’ 090. 2 ’ 423 7 16.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) .. 0. 0.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line4) . 0. 0.
ol 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part X, column (A), lines 5-10) 754,510. 938,556.
2( 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line11e) . . . . . 0. 0.
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) 0.
Wl 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f24e) 751,878. 1,374,004.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part X, column (A), line25) 1,506,388. 2,312,560.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline 12 ... ... -77,298. 111,156.
54 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
9 20 Total assets (Part X, e 16) ..o 639,135. 736,864.
<J 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) ... 141,067. 127,640.
25 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from iNe 20 ..........ccocoooviivvvvovirveriiirs, 498,068. 609,224.

| Part Il | Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign Signature of officer Date
Here KRISTI FOSTER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date cheok [ ]| PTIN
Paid BRADLEY BINGENHEIMER BRADLEY BINGENHEIMER|[08/03/24 Isfelf-employed P00357744
Preparer |Firm'sname SINGERLEWAK LLP Frm'sEIN 95-2302617
Use Only | Firm'saddress 1255 LEE ST. SE, SUITE 210

SALEM, OR 97302 Phoneno.503.585.7751

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions ... .. ... ... Yes |:| No
232001 12-13-22  LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2022)

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR ORGANIZATION MISSION STATEMENT CONTINUATION



Form 990 (2022) TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357 Page?2

| Part i | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Il ... e |:|

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

THE TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP AS A 501(C)(3) NON-PROFIT
ORGANIZATION DEDICATED TO THE CONSERVATION AND RESTORATION OF
TILLAMOOK COUNTY'S ESTUARIES AND WATERSHEDS IN THEIR ENTIRETY.

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

prior Form 990 0r 990-EZ2 [Jves [X]No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? ... ... ... |:| Yes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and

revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a

(Code: ) (Expenses$ 1 Ji 3 44 i 0 41 . including grants of $ ) (Revenue$ 1 7 60 9 7 3 8 8 . )
DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A COMPREHENSIVE CONSERVATION AND
MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE TILLAMOOK BAY ESTUARY, DESIGNATED AS ONE OF 28
ESTUARIES OF NATIONAL SIGNIFICANCE UNDER THE EPA NATIONAL ESTUARY

PROGRAM

4b

(Code: ) (Expenses $ 8 2 9 7 0 2 3 o including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 8 0 9 7 1 9 7 . )
PERFORMANCE OF VARIOUS PROJECTS TO MONITOR AND IMPROVE THE WATER

QUALITY AND RESTORE FISH AND WILDLIFE HABITAT OF THE TILLAMOOK BAY
ESTUARY UNDER GRANTS FROM GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES AND OTHER

ORGANIZATIONS.

4c

(Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) _(Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses 2,173,064.

Form 990 (2022)

232002 12-13-22



Form 990 (2022) TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357 Page3
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
I "YES," COMPIETE SCREAUIE A ..o 1 X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? If "Yes," complete SCREAUIE C, PArt | .............cco oo 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? |f "Yes," complete SCREQUIE C, PAt Il .............coo oottt 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197 |f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part lll ....................c.c..ccocooieeeeeeeeeeeeee. 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Il ...............ccocvcvoeeeceeeeeen. 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? Jf "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE D, Part lll ...\ oo\ oo 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV ... ... 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi endowments? [f "Yes," complete SCheAUIE D, PAIt V' ...............c.cccoiiieeeee et 10 X
11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X,
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? jf "Yes," complete Schedule D,
Pt VI oo 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ..............ccoo oo, 11b X
c Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ..................cccuoi oo 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX .................ccocii oo i i [ X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11e X
f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ............ 11f | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? |f "Yes," complete
SCHEAUIE D, Parts XI @NG XIl ...............ooo...ooeooeeoeee oo 12a | X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xl is optional ............... 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i))? If "Yes," complete Schedule E  ..............coooovoooe 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? |f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts | QNG IV ..............ccoooe oo e 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? jf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts 11and IV ... @ e 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? i "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts 1 and IV ................c.cocoi oo, 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? f "Yes, " complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions ... 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines
1c and 8a? f "Yes," complete SCREAUIE G, Part Il ..............ooo oot 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? jf "Yes,"
COMPIEte SCREAUIE G, Pat Il ...........c.oo oo 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? jf "Yes," complete Schedule H ...............ccocooeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 20a X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? if "Yes." complete Schedule I. Parts [and I .....c.ccoccociovieeniiiiieiiiien: 21 X

232008 12-13-22 Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022) TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357  page4
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (ontinueq)

Yes | No

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 27 f "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1 and Il ....................ccocoooioieeeeeeeee e 22 X

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIB J ... ... oo 23 X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 /f "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete

Schedule K. If "NO," GO 10 N8 25@ ..............c..ooe oo 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b

c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
aNY TAX-BXEMPE DONAS? | e 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | ..................ccccocooverevevereennn.. 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? |f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE L, PArt | ... oo oo 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il ..................ccocooveeceenne... 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee,
creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part il ......... 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L, Part IV,

instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? f
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ... 28a X
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? ¢
"Yes," complete SChedule L, Part IV ...................c..coo oo 28c X
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? f "Yes, " complete Schedule M
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? f "Yes," complete SCREAUIE M ...............c..cooi oot 30 X

88

31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part | 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? |f "Yes," complete

SCREAUIE N, PAIt Il ...........oo...o oo 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 |f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part | ...............coc oo, 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part Ii, Ill, or IV, and

PRIV, l18 T ....ooo..o oo 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(0)(13)? . 35a X

b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity

within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€@ 2 ..............oceoceeeeoeeeeoeeeeeee e 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€ 2 ..................cccooi i 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI ........................ 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?

Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ... i et iiiiiriiiees 38 | X

| PartV | Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -O- if not applicable .. ... ... ... 1a 12
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize WINNErs? ... 1c [ X

232004 12-13-22 Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022) TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357  Page5
[PartV| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (ontinued)

Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn ... ... 2a 14
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? e [ X
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? jf "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O ...............cc.ccc....... 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . 4a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear? . ... 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . 5b X
c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were MOt tax dedUCHIDIE? e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
O file FOM 82820 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year ... . . .. | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . . . . 7e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f
g [f the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? .. | 7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . . 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, line 12 ... ... ... 1 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received fromthem.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ................. 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans ... [13b
c Enterthe amountof reservesonhand 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? jf "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) dUring the YEar? ... .. .. 15 X
If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? . 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17 Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 49537 17
If "Yes," complete Form 6069.

232005 12-13-22 Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022) TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357  Ppage 6

| Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure. roreach "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response

to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI e iiieii s

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a

[3,]

7a

9

Yes | No

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear ... ... 1a 9
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule O.

Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . ... .. ... 1b 9
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key emMplOYee? | | e, 2
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision

of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? .
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?
Did the organization have members or stockholders? e,
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or

more members of the governing body? e 7a
Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or

persons other than the governing body? e 7b X
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:

The QOVEIMING DOTY? | e 8a | X

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?
Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the

organization’s mailing address? Jf "Yes " provide the names and addresses on Schedule Q ......ccoooviciieiieiieeiiiiiiiciieiieess 9 X

b

o o |» |
bad Ead el Lo

b

Section B. Policies (1y;s Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

10a
b

11a

12a

13
14
15

16a

Yes [ No
Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affliates ? 10a X
If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,

and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? . 10b
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a| X
Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? |f "No," go to line 13 12a| X

Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? 120 | X

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f "Yes," describe

on Schedule O hOW thiS WAS GONE ...................ccoi oo 12c | X
Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 | X
Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 | X
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official ... |15a X
Other officers or key employees of the organization ... 15b X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the Year? 16a X
If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation

in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s

exempt status with respect to such arrangements?

16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed OR

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Own website |:| Another’s website Upon request |:| Other (explain on Schedule O)

Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records

TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP - 503-322-2222
P.0O. BOX 493, GARIBALDI, OR 97118
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Form 990 (2022)

TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

02-0584357

Page 7

|Part VII| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
® | ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.

Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

® | ist all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee."

® | ist the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

|:| Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) © (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average | chPe Sf::fr’er‘than one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any g the organizations compensation
hours for | S R 3 organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related g § . % (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| £ | 5 2 |g 1099-NEC) and related
below ElelL]E18E = organizations
ine) | E|E|c|5|2E 5
(1) KRISTI FOSTER 40.00
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR X 110,484. 0. 7,734.
(2) DAVID JOHNSON 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(3) CLIFFORD RONE 1.00
SECRETARY/TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
(4) LIANE WELCH 1.00
IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT X 0. 0. 0.
(5) NANCY HOFFMAN 1.00
VICE PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(6) MEREDITH RICHARDSON 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(7) JOHN KIRBY 1.00
PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(8) SHARON HARMON 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(9) MARK WUSTENBERG 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(10) JAMES SKAAR 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(11) MICHAEL SINNOTT 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.

232007 12-13-22

Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022) TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357  Page 8

| Part VI | Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (B) ©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average o notcfe Sf::fr’er‘than one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(istany | 5 the organizations compensation
hours for | S < organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related | 3 | £ z (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| 2 [ = g (2 1099-NEC) and related
below [E[£|_|2|28 s organizations
b Subtotal . . 110,484. 0. 7,734.
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A 0. 0. 0.
d Total(addlinesibandic) .....................o.oooooiiiii 110,484. 0. 7,734.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization 1
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for SUCH INGIVIGUAI  ....................cooii oot oo 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,0007? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual .............................. 4 X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
rendered to the organization? jf "Yes " complete Schedule J for SUCH DEIrSON «weowcociiovieiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiieee it 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

A (B) ©
Name and business address NONE Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization 0

Form 990 (2022)
232008 12-13-22



Form 990 (2022) TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357  Page 9
| Part VIII | Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthis Part VIl ... e |:|
(A) (B8) (©) (D)
Total revenue Related or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded
function revenue [business revenue| from tax under
sections 512 - 514
‘2, 1 a Federated campaigns ... 1a
© b Membershipdues ... 1b
("':. ¢ Fundraising events . 1c 2,228.
;D‘E d Related organizations 1d
g e Government grants (contributions) |1e| 2,418,585,
,5 f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
E similar amounts not included above [ 1f 18,769.
.'E g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f 1g $ 1 4 7 6 7 1 o
S h Total. Add lines1a-1f ... 2,439,582,
Business Code
8|2
I b
S e
o f All other program service revenue ... ..
g Total. Add lines 2a-2f ... .. ..coooiiiiiiiiiiiii i
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts)
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds
5 Royalties ...
(i) Real (ii) Personal
6 a Grossrents ... 6a
b Less: rental expenses . [6b
¢ Rental income or (loss) 6¢c
d Net rentalincome or (1I0SS) ...
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (ii) Other
assets other than inventory | 7a
b Less: cost or other basis
g and sales expenses 7b
§ c Gainor(loss) ... 7c
& d Net gain OF (I0SS) ......oivovooe oottt
E 8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
b including $ 2,228. of
contributions reported on line 1c). See
PartIV, line18 . . |ea 0.
b Less: direct expenses gsb| 15 ’ 866.
c Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ... -15 ’ 866. -15 ’ 866 .
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
PartIV,line19 ... 9a
b Less: direct expenses ... 9b
c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities ...
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances ... 103
b Less: cost of goods sold 10b)
c_Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ........................
" Business Code
§ 11 a
s d Allotherrevenue . . .
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions ... 2,423,716. 0. 0. -15,866.

232009 12-13-22 Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022) TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357 page 10
[ Part IX | Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX ... e |:|
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total e(Qp))enses Prograg?)service Manage(%)ent and Fund(lr?a)ising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 . . .
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines15and 16 .
4 Benefits paid to or formembers .
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees .. ... 130,741. 130,741.
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) .........
7 Othersalariesand wages 559,599. 489,974. 69,625.
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 60,253. 54,208. 6,045.
9 Other employee benefits ... ... 110,941. 99,811. 11,130.
10 Payrolitaxes . 77,022. 68,902. 8,120.
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management ...
b Legal . ...
¢ Accounting 16,500. 16,500.
d Lobbying ...
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees . ... ...
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.)
12 Advertising and promotion 3,805. 298. 3,507.
13 Office @XPeNses . ... ... 167,840. 157,599. 10,241.
14 Informationtechnology . . . ... 15,421. 15,166. 255.
16 Royalties ...
16 Occupancy 74,392. 61,743. 12,649.
17 Travel ... 47,761. 47,761.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials |
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings .
20 Interest .
21 Payments to affiliates ...
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization . 10,493. 10,493.
23 Insurance ... 13,627. 1,228. 12,399.
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A),
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a CONTRACTED SERVICES 1,018,227.] 1,016,611. 1,616.
b DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 5,938. 2,029. 3,9009.
c
d
e All other expenses
25 _ Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 2,312,560.f 2,173,064. 139,496. 0.
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization
reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here |:| if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

232010 12-13-22
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Page 11

[ Part X | Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in thisPart X ................

232011 12-13-22

(A) (8)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing ... 207,961.| 1 252,406.
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net 400,753.] 3 464,529.
4  Accounts receivable, net 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons ... 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ... 6
8 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
§ 8 Inventories forsaleoruse ... 8
< 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 175,126.
b Less: accumulated depreciation 155,197. 30,421.] 10c 19,929.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities 11
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 13
14 Intangible assets ... ... 14
15  Other assets. See Part 1V, line 11 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) 639,135.]| 16 736,864.
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 141,067.]| 17 127,640.
18 Grants payable ..., 18
19 Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . 21
» | 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
é trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D . ., 25
26 _ Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through25 ... 141,067.] 2 127,640.
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
§ 27 Net assets without donor restrictions 424,217.| 27 561,154.
@ | 28  Net assets with donor restrictions 73,851.| 28 48,070.
B Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here |:|
'-i-, and complete lines 29 through 33.
g 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds .. . 29
@ | 80 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund . . 30
<‘t" 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds .. .. 31
B |32 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances 498,068.]| 32 609,224.
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... 639,135.] 33 736,864.
Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022) TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357 page 12
[ Part XI | Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1 2,423,716.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 2,312,560.
8 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 3 111 ’ 156.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A) 4 498,068.
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities 6
7 INVeSIMeNt eXPeNSES 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O) 9 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,
COUMN (B)) oo 10 609,224.
Part XIl| Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII ... |:|
Yes | No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash Accrual |:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain on Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2| X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . . 2c | X

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the

Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? 3a| X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ... 3| X
Form 990 (2022)
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. . . OMB No. 1545-0047
iz:izo?m A Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 2022
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organizatibn Employer identification number

TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357
[Part] | Reason for Public Charity Status. (all organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 |:| A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)-

|:| A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

|:| A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)iii).

|:| A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital’s name,

city, and state:

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:

An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from

activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment

income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.

See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

11 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box on
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

|:| Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b |:| Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c |:| Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d |:| Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e |:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type Il, Type llI

functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

& ON

0 00 B0 O

10

f Enter the number of supported organizations |
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization "g'V)O 'Srthgvggg?#'zgg gﬂ[ﬁsefneg (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of other
- - your g g ?
organization (described on lines 1-10 support (see instructions) | support (see instructions
9 above (see instructions)) Yes No prort | ) pport | )
Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 232021 12-09-22 Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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| Part i | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part lll. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lIl.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.") 1667884.[ 1928621.| 1310927.| 1424644.| 2424911.( 8756987.

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge 7,661. 9,440. 9,482. 11,766. 14,671. 53,020.

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 1675545.) 1938061.]| 1320409.| 1436410.| 2439582.| 8810007.

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

column ()
Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4. 8810007.
Sectlon B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total
7 Amounts fromline4 ... 1675545.| 1938061.( 1320409.( 1436410.| 2439582.| 8810007.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources .

9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explainin Part V1) 42,025.| 23,375. 65,400.
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 8875407.
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) 12 |

13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, Check this DOX Aand SO MerE ...t oo iiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiin |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2022 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f) ... 14 99.26 %
15 Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part I, line 14 15 98.55 %

16a 33 1/3% support test - 2022. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ...
b 33 1/3% support test - 2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported OrganiZatioN
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... ... . ...
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions
Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2022 TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357 pages
[ Part Il | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5 . .. .

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

cAddlines7aand7b ...

8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from line 6.
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total
9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources .

b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

cAdd lines 10aand 10b ... ...
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon
12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part VL) ----ooooeoe
13 Total support. (add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

CheCK this DOX AN St MO e .o it o e iiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieiieieie |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2022 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) .. ... ... ... 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part Il line 15 ... e, 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2022 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ... ... ... 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2022. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... ... |:|
b 33 1/3% support tests - 2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . .
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  .............................. |:|
232023 12-09-22 Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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[PartIV] supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing

documents? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
lines 3b and 3c below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination. 3b

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? f
"Yes," and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? |f "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes, " explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? |f "Yes,"
answer lines 5b and 5¢ below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part V1, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action,; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b Type l or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization’s organizing document? 5b
c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control? 5¢c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? Jf "Yes," provide detail in
Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with

regard to a substantial contributor? jf "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? Jif "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b
c Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? Jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? Jf "Yes," answer line 10b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

232024 12-09-22 Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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[ Part IV | Supporting Organizations (continueq)

Yes | No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a

b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b

c A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? Jf "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c, provide

____detailin Part VI. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? Jf "Yes," explain in
Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,

ization 2

. .
Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? /f "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

ization(s) 1

—the supported organ
Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? |f "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? |f "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's

o o »
Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a |:| The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 pelow.
b |:| The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c [JThe organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructiol
2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes | No
a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? |f "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a
b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement,
one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? |f "Yes," explain in

)~

Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in
these activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Jf "Yes" or "No" provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? jf "Yes. " ibe jn Part VI ization in thi: d, 3b

232025 12-09-22 Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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[PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 ( explain in Part V). See instructions.

All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

a|h O N |-

[0 (S £ [V | VI P

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

(]

7 Other expenses (see instructions)

~

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

1a

Average monthly cash balances

1b

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

ic

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢)

1id

o a0 |T |v

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors

(explain in detail in Part VI):

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

(]

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

[

IS

see instructions).

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

(o2 o I [ 1 [4)]

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

0N jo |0 |~

Section C - Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

a|d|OIN |-

o OB W N |-

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

6

~

instructions).

|:| Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see

232026 12-09-22
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[PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions

Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 4
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required - provide details in Part VI) 5
6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 6
7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part V1). See instructions. 8
9 Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6 9
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10
0] (i) (iiil)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2022 Amount for 2022
1__ Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6
2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2022 (reason-
able cause required - explain in Part Vl). See instructions.
3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2022
a_From 2017
b _From 2018
c_From 2019
d From 2020
e From 2021
f _Total of lines 3a through 3e
g Applied to underdistributions of prior years
h_Applied to 2022 distributable amount
i__Carryover from 2017 not applied (see instructions)
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.
4  Distributions for 2022 from Section D,
line 7: $
a_Applied to underdistributions of prior years

b _Applied to 2022 distributable amount

c_Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2022, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2022. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2023. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

a_Excess from 2018
b _Excess from 2019
c_Excess from 2020
d _Excess from 2021
e Excess from 2022

232027 12-09-22
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| Part VI | Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part Ill, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c, 53, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢c, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)

SCHEDULE A, PART II, LINE 10, EXPLANATION FOR OTHER INCOME :

FISCAL AGENT FEES

232028 12-09-22 Schedule A (Form 990) 2022



SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements SR NG, 103 047

(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 2022
PartlV, line 6,7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. .
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open tq Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357

| Part | | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 6.

a HON

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

Aggregate value atend of year ...

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control?
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

|:| Yes |:| No

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring
impermissible private benefit? . e eiiiiiiiiieiiisiisissisiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeiiss |:| Yes |:| No

[Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

2

o 0 T 9

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

|:| Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) |:| Preservation of a historically important land area

|:| Protection of natural habitat |:| Preservation of a certified historic structure

|:| Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements 2a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after July 25,2006, and not on a

historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year
Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located
Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? |:| Yes |:| No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)

and section 170(M(ANB)I? ...\ oo [ JTves [_INo
In Part XIll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and

balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the

organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

| Part Il | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part Xlll the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:
(i) Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 $
(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X $

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide

the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 %

b_Assets included in Form 990, Part X $

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357 page?2
[Part lll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets ,ntinueq)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):
a |:| Public exhibition d |:| Loan or exchange program
b |:| Scholarly research e |:| Other
c |:| Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XIII.

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? ... |:| Yes |:| No

| Part IV I Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included

ONFOM 990, Part X7 oo [ Jves [INo
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIll and complete the following table:

Beginning balance .. e ic
Additions during the year . 1d
Distributions during the year 1e
Ending balance . ... ... 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? . |:| Yes |:| No
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIIl ... |:|
| Part V | Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back

- 0o o O

1a Beginning of year balance
Contributions

Net investment earnings, gains, and losses
Grants or scholarships . ...
Other expenditures for facilities
and programs ...
Administrative expenses
g End of year balance
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment %
b Permanent endowment %
¢ Term endowment %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes | No
(i) Unrelated organizations ... .. | 3a(i)
(i) Related organizations ... .. 3a(ii)
3b

® o O T

-

b If "Yes" on line 3a(ji), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?

4 Describe in Part Xlll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
| Part VI | Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation

1a Land .
b Buildings
¢ Leasehold improvements

d Equipment

175,126. 155,197. 19,929.

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990. Part X. column (B). in@ 10C) ..oocoivieeiiciiciieicieiiciiciiee: 19,929.
Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357 page3

[Part VII] Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives .. ...

(2) Closely held equity interests

(3) Other

A
B

l—~

~—

l—~ |~
\_/()

=

3 [@ S

@

(H)
Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.)

| Part VIII| Investments - Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
(2)
(8)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.)

[Part IX| Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
(a) Description (b) Book value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, €Ol (B) i@ 15.) ... oot

[Part X | Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.
1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value
1
2

Federal income taxes

w

(
(
(
(

N

ul

()

N

(
(
(
(

(o)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

9
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990. Part X. col. (B) iN@ 25.) «..ocoviiiuiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIlI, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the

organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII ...

Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357 page4d
| Part XI | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1 2,439,582.
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) oninvestments 2a

b Donated services and use of facilities .. 2b

¢ Recoveries of prior year grants 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIIL) .. 2d 15,866.

e Addlines 2athrough 2d 2e 15,866.
3 Subtractline 2e oM INe 1 e 3 | 2,423,716.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b ... 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIIL) e 4b

¢ Addlinesdaanddb ... 4c 0.

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must eq € 12) i 2 r 423 r 716.

ual Form 990. Part | lin
| Part { | Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per R eturn.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 2 ;3 28 ’ 426.
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities .. 2a

b Prioryearadjustments 2b

€ OtherloSSeS . . . ... 2

d Other (Describe in Part XIIL) ... 2d 15,866.

e Addlines 2athrough 2d 2e 15,866.
3 Subtractline 2e oM INe 1 e 3 | 2,312,560.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIIl, line7b ... 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIIL) e 4b

¢ Addlinesdaanddb ... 4c 0.

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part [ fin 18.)  -vioieeeeoiiiieieiseiiieiceeieeeee. 5 2,312,560.

| Part Xlll| Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART X, LINE 2:

MANAGEMENT HAS EVALUATED TAX POSITIONS TAKEN AND THERE ARE NO UNCERTAIN

POSITIONS TAKEN OR EXPECTED TO BE TAKEN THAT WOULD REQUIRE RECOGNITION OF

A LIABILITY OR DISCLOSURE IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. THE ORGANIZATION IS

SUBJECT TO ROUTINE AUDITS BY TAXING JURISDICTIONS.

PART XI, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

DIRECT EXPENSES OF FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

PART XII, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

DIRECT EXPENSES OF FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

232054 09-01-22 Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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[Part XIII | Supplemental Information ontinveq)

Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OME No. 1945, 0047
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2022
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.qov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP 02-0584357

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

CONSERVATION AND RESTORATION OF TILLAMOOK COUNTY'S ESTUARIES AND

WATERSHEDS IN THEIR ENTIRETY.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND ACCOUNTING MANAGER REVIEW A

COPY OF THE INFORMATIONAL FORM 990 PRIOR TO ITS FILING.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

IF A POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST SHOULD OCCUR, THE INDIVIDUAL IS

REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND REMOVE THEMSELVES FROM

FURTHER DISCUSSION ON THE MATTER.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

POSTED ON THE ORGANIZATION'S WEBSITE

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) 2022
232211 10-28-22
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Tillamook Estuaries Partnership
Tillamook, Oregon

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tillamook Estuaries Partnership (the
“Organization”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2023, the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of September 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

1255 Lee Street SE, Unit 210, Salem, OR 97302 s
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Board of Directors
Tillamook Estuaries Partnership

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Board of Directors
Tillamook Estuaries Partnership

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 US, Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 24, 2024,
on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

é%m LLP

July 24, 2024
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TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2023

Cash
Grants receivable
Equipment and furniture, net

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Refundable advances
Accrued vacation payable

Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Total liabilities and net assets

See notes to financial statements.

4

$ 252,406
464,529
19,929

$ 736,864

$ 59,667
45,518
22,455

127,640

561,154
48,070

609,224

$ 736,864




TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended September 30, 2023

Support

Federal and state grants
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ)
Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board (OWEB)
Bureau of Land Management (BLM)
Other

Local grants

Contributions
Cash
In-kind rent

Net assets released from restriction

Total support

Expenses
Program services
General and administrative
Fundraising

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets beginning

Net assets ending

See notes to financial statements.

Without Donor

With Donor

5

Restrictions Restrictions Totals
$ 1,609,388 $ - % 1,609,388
42,852 - 42,852
188,299 - 188,299
97,049 - 97,049
118,669 - 118,669
362,328 - 362,328
6,326 - 6,326
14,671 - 14,671
25,781 (25,781) -
2,465,363 (25,781) 2,439,582
2,173,064 - 2,173,064
139,496 - 139,496
15,866 - 15,866
2,328,426 - 2,328,426
136,937 (25,781) 111,156
424,217 73,851 498,068
$ 561,154 $ 48,070 $ 609,224




TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year Ended September 30, 2023

Program Services

EPA

National Supporting Services

Estuary ODEQ OWEB BLM Other Total General and

Program projects projects projects projects program Administrative  Fundraising Totals
Compensation $ 471,121 $ 3,388 $ 63,614 $ 17,254 $ 65,338 $ 620,715 $ 69,625 $ 9,080 $ 699,420
Employee benefits 123,510 674 12,594 5,348 11,893 154,019 17,175 599 171,793
Payroll taxes 52,294 445 5,511 2,037 8,615 68,902 8,120 725 77,747
Office supplies 11,292 - - - 1,209 12,501 238 - 12,739
Operating supplies 29,964 5,812 36,427 47,872 22,341 142,416 10,003 - 152,419
Postage 229 - - - 53 282 - - 282
Printing and advertising 298 - - - - 298 3,507 362 4,167
Telephone and internet 75 - - 877 - 952 8,283 - 9,235
Rent 17,709 - - - 14,671 32,380 1,733 - 34,113
Utilities - - - 6,549 15,650 22,199 2,633 - 24,832
Repair and maintenance 756 - - - 365 1,121 - - 1,121
Insurance 1,228 - - - - 1,228 12,399 - 13,627
Travel 38,031 - 1,166 743 7,821 47,761 - - 47,761
Dues and subscriptions 1,295 - - - 734 2,029 3,909 4,500 10,438
Audit 16,500 - - - - 16,500 - - 16,500
Janitorial 5,091 - - - - 5,091 - - 5,091
Contract services 562,072 30,473 68,987 16,242 338,837 1,016,611 1,616 600 1,018,827
Computer costs 10,176 - - 4,990 15,166 255 - 15,421
Office equipment 2,400 - - - 2,400 - - 2,400
Depreciation - - - - 10,493 10,493 - - 10,493
Total expenses by function $ 1,344,041 $ 40,792 $ 188,299 $ 96,922 $ 503,010 $ 2,173,064 $ 139,496 $ 15,866 $ 2,328,426

See notes to financial statements.
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TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended September 30, 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 111,156
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation 10,493
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Grants receivable (63,776)

Accounts payable (61,390)

Refundable advances 45,518

Accrued vacation payable 2,444

Net cash provided by operating activities 44,445

Net increase in cash 44,445

Cash - beginning 207,961

Cash - ending $ 252,406

See notes to financial statements.
7



TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY

Tillamook Estuaries Partnership (the “Organization”) was incorporated March 4, 2002 to operate
programs and projects for the conservation and rehabilitation of the Tillamook Bay Estuary. The
Tillamook Bay Estuary is one of 28 estuaries designated as having national significance. The
Organization receives most of its financial support through federal awards from the Environmental
Protection Agency. The board is comprised of representatives from the businesses, governments
and general citizenry in the surrounding area.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Net Assets

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of FASB ASC 958-205, “Not-for-
Profit Entities— Presentation of Financial Statements.” Under FASB ASC 958-205, the
Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to two classes of net assets; accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

o Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization’s
management and board of directors.

o Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the fund be maintained in
perpetuity. Donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets
with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of
activities.

Donor-restricted contributions that are received and spent in the same period are presented as
net assets without donor restrictions.

Revenue Recognition

Contributions received are recorded as support that is with donor restrictions or without donor
restrictions. Classification is based on the existence and nature of any donor restrictions
imposed on the contribution.




TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

The Organization's grant revenue is primarily derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state
contracts and grants which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. The Organization elected to use the simultaneous
release method for conditional grants which allows the Organization to report donor-+estricted
contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period as the revenue is
recognized as support within net assets without donor restrictions. Amounts received are
recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with
specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenses are
reported as refundable advances in the statement of financial position.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Grants Receivable
Receivables from granting agencies are stated at net realizable value to the Organization.

Equipment and Furniture

Assets with an initial cost greater than $5,000 and a useful life of more than one year are
capitalized as equipment and furniture. Equipment and furniture are stated at cost, or estimated
value if donated, less accumulated depreciation which is calculated using the straight-line
method over useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing program and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis
in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among program services and supporting services benefited. Salaries, benefits, and other
expenses that are associated with more than one program or supporting service are allocated
on the basis of estimates of time and effort.

Income Taxes

The Organization is tax-exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
gualifies for the charitable contribution deduction. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) does not
classify the Organization as a private foundation. Management has evaluated tax positions taken
and there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would require recognition
of a liability or disclosure in the financial statements. The Organization is subject to routine audits
by taxing jurisdictions.



TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents the Organization’s financial assets available to meet general
expenditures at September 30, 2023:

Financial assets:
Cash $ 252,406
Grants receivable 464,529

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next twelve months $ 716,935

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it structures its financial assets to be
available as its general expenses, liabilities and other obligations come due.

NOTE 4 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts due from granting agencies and others as of September 30, 2023, are as follows:

EPA $ 274,352
ODEQ 7,786
OWEB 51,611
Hebo Stewardship Group 38,036
BLM 32,295
Other 60,449

$ 464,529

NOTE 5 - EQUIPMENT AND FURNITURE

At September 30, 2023, equipment and furniture consisted of the following:

Equipment and software $ 159,973
Furniture 15,153
175,126

Accumulated depreciation (155,197)
$ 19,929

10



TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization sponsors a 401(k) retirement plan. All employees who have attained age 21
are eligible to participate. Employees may elect to defer a portion of their wages up to the limits
established in the IRS. In addition, the Organization contributes seven percent of eligible
employees’ wages to the plan, subject to IRS limits. Contributions by the Organization for the
year ended September 30, 2023, amounted to $60,464.

NOTE 7 - IN-KIND RENT

The Organization leases real property from the Port of Garibaldi, which is a governmental entity.
Total lease expense for the year ended September 30, 2023, amounted to $32,380, with
$14,671 of this amount contributed as an in-kind donation. The fair value of the in-kind donation
was determined using the Real Market Value (RMV) as certified by the Tillamook County Assessor
as the basis for an appraisal for determining annual lease rates. The Organization received the
letter from the Port of Garibaldi which had language granting the Organization an in-kind donation
for the aforementioned amount.

During the year ended September 30, 2023, $17,709 was paid to the Port of Garibaldi under
the lease agreement. Under the lease agreement, which expires June 30, 2024, the Organization
is committed to pay the Port of Garibaldi approximately $13,680 for the year ended September
30, 2024.

NOTE 8 - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Deposits with Financial Institutions
The Organization’s deposits with financial institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. Any excess may be subject to risk of loss. The
Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to
any significant credit risk on cash.

Concentrations

The Organization received a significant portion (65 percent) of its support from the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) under the National Estuary Program. Additionally, approximately 59
percent of the Organization’s grant receivables as of September 30, 2023 were from the EPA.
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TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - GRANTS AVAILABLE

The Organization has been awarded various amounts under grant agreements which have not
been reported in the financial statements because not all conditions have been met to earn the

grant as follows:

Awarding Agency

EPA

ODEQ

OWEB

NOAA

Hebo Stewardship Group

NOTE 10 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Unearned
Amount

$ 2,466,788
79,273
598,297
625,000
64,043

$ 3,833,401

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at September 30,

2023:

Netarts / Oceanside projects
Salmon projects

Salmon super highway
Explore nature program
Travel Oregon

$ 14,000
4,507

15,500

5,000

9,063

$ 48,070

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted
purpose or other events specified by the donors as follows for the year ended September 30,

2023:

Southern flow corridor
Explore nature program
ODEQ

Roundhouse

Native plant nursery

12

$ 1,373
2,759

1,405

5,136

15,108

$ 25,781




TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated events subsequent to year end through July 24, 2024, which is
the date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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.Singer

Accountants & Consultants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Tillamook Estuaries Partnership
Tillamook, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial
statements of Tillamook Estuaries Partnership (the “Organization”), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of September 30, 2023, the related statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated July 24, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. We identified a deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-001, that we consider to be a
material weakness.
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Board of Directors

Tillamook Estuaries Partnership

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The Organization’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards require the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Organization’s
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. The Organization’s response was not subjected to other auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

July 24, 2024
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Accountants & Consultants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL OVER CONTROL COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Tillamook Estuaries Partnership
Tillamook, Oregon

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Tillamook Estuaries Partnership’s (the “Organization”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2023. The Organization’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance Section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization’s federal programs.
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Board of Directors

Tillamook Estuaries Partnership

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on
Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material nhoncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Organization’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program
as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we

o exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

e obtain an understanding of the Organization’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during our audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.
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Board of Directors

Kids & Company of Linn County

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on
Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Page 18

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal controls over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal controls over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
have not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

July 24, 2024
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TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2023

Federal Pass-Through
Assistance Entity
Listing Identifying Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Department of Agriculture
U.S. Forest Service
Passed through Cascade Pacific Resource Conservation and Development
Watershed Restoration and Enhancement Agreement Authority 10.693 20-SA-11061200-007 WYH20-25 $ 9,439
Watershed Restoration and Enhancement Agreement Authority 10.693 20-SA-11061200-007 WYH21-26 16,361
Watershed Restoration and Enhancement Agreement Authority 10.693 20-SA-11061200-007 Mod 2 17,591
Watershed Restoration and Enhancement Agreement Authority 10.693 20-SA-11061200-007 WYH22-32 3,963
Watershed Restoration and Enhancement Agreement Authority 10.693 USFS 20-CA MODS 0,1,2 TEP23-1 2,000
Total Department of Agriculture 49,354
Department of Commerce
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
Passed through Pacific States Marine Fisheries Commission
State of Oregon; Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board 11.438 EB3YL192PKN6 13,955
Total Department of Commerce 13,955
Department of The Interior
Bureau of Land Management
Secure Rural Schools and Community Self-Determination 15.234 L12AC10034 25,465
Secure Rural Schools and Community Self-Determination 15.234 L22AC00053 16,242
Threatened and Endangered Species 15.246 L20AC00031 44,139
Plant Conservation and Restoration Management
Northwest Oregon Restoration Partnership 15.245 L20AC00323 11,203
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
Coastal 15.631 20-SA-11061200-007 9,765
Total Department of the Interior 106,814
Environmental Protection Agency
Office of Water
National Estuary Program 66.456 1,609,387
Passed through Oregon Department of Environmental Quality
Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants 66.460 03821
Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants 66.460 091-21
Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants 66.460 072-23
Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants 66.460 003-24 42,852
Total Environmental Protection Agency 1,652,239
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,822,362

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the
federal award activity of Tillamook Estuaries Partnership (the “Organization”) under programs of
the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2023. The information in the Schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such

expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

The Organization has elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.
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TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? Yes
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None
reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? No

+  Significant deficiency(ies) identified None
reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No

Identification of major federal programs:

Federal Assistance Listing Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

66.456 National Estuary Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
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TILLAMOOK ESTUARIES PARTNERSHIP
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

2023-001

Criteria - The Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls over financial
reporting to prevent, or detect and correct, material misstatements in the financial statements.

Condition - The Organization’s internal controls did not prevent, or detect and correct, a material
misstatement in the undeposited funds account, resulting in an overstatement of grants receivable in
the amount of $67,399.

Cause - The Organization did not properly record cash payments received which caused the undeposited
funds account to be misstated at year-end.

Effect - Material errors were not prevented, or detected and corrected.

Recommendation - We recommend the Organization perform a thorough secondary review of balance
sheet accounts to ensure that balances are fairly stated at year-end.

Views of responsible officials - The Organization agrees with the finding and will develop an action plan
that includes increased review to ensure all transactions are recorded accurately.

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None
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